
 

AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

55 West Williams Avenue Fallon, NV 
June 06, 2023 at 9:00 AM 

 

The Honorable City Council will meet in a regularly scheduled meeting on June 6, 2023 at 9:00 a.m. in 

the City Council Chambers, 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallon, Nevada. 

Items on the agenda may be taken out of order. The Council may combine two or more agenda items for 

consideration. The Council may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item 

on the agenda at any time. Unless otherwise allowed by the City Council, public comments by an 

individual will be limited to three minutes. 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 

 

2. Certification of Compliance with Posting Requirements 

 

3. Public Comments 

General in nature, not relative to any agenda items. No action may be taken on a matter raised 

under this item until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon 

which action will be taken. (For discussion only) 

 

4. Consideration and possible approval of Council Meeting Minutes for May 16, 2023. (For 

possible approval) 

 

5. Approval of Warrants (For possible action) 

A) Accounts Payable 

B) Payroll 

C) Customer Deposit 

 

6. Consideration of application by Kristen Adakai for a retail liquor license for MK Innovations 

LLC, dba The Scooby Shack to be located at 195 E. Center Street.  (For possible action) 

 

7. Consideration and possible approval and adoption of Resolution 23-06: A resolution of the City 

Council of Fallon, Nevada providing for the transfer of the City’s 2023 Private Activity Bond 

1



Volume Cap to the Nevada Rural Housing authority; and other matters related thereto. (For 

possible action) 

 

8. Consideration and possible action to approve the contract for the purchase of City owned 

property, commonly known as 1290 New River Parkway, Fallon, Nevada (Churchill County 

Assessor’s Parcel No.: 001-781-09) to Ivy Land LLC in the amount of sixty-five thousand 

dollars ($65,000) and for other matters properly related thereto. (For possible action) 

 

9. Consideration and possible action to   approve an agreement with Precision Ice Rinks of 

Concord, NC, for a three-month   rental of a 40’ x 100’ ice-skating rink, in the amount of One 

Hundred Sixty-One Thousand Three Hundred Fifty Dollars   ($161,350.00). (For possible 

action) 

 

10. Public Comments (For discussion only) 

 

11. Council and Staff Reports (For discussion only) 

 

12. Executive Session (Closed) 

 

Discuss Litigation Matters (For discussion only) (NRS 241 et.seq.) 

Negotiations with Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 (For discussion only) 

Negotiations with Fallon Peace Officers Association (For discussion only) 

 

 

This agenda has been posted on or before 9:00 a.m. on June 1, 2023 at City Hall, District Court 

Building, Churchill County Office Complex, Churchill County Public Library and posted to the City’s 

website (https://fallonnevada.gov) and the State of Nevada public notice website (https://notice.nv.gov/). 

Members of the public may request the supporting material for this meeting by contacting Elsie M. Lee, 

Deputy City Clerk, City Clerk’s Office, City Hall, 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallon, Nevada, 775-423-

5104.  The supporting material for this meeting is also available to the public on the City’s website 

(https://fallonnevada.gov) and the State of Nevada public notice website (https://notice.nv.gov/). 

 

/s/ Elsie M. Lee 

 

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: Reasonable effort will be made to assist and 

accommodate physically handicapped persons desiring to attend the meeting.  Please call the City 

Clerk's Office at 775-423-5104 in advance so that arrangements may be conveniently made. 

2



May 16, 2023 Fallon City Council Meeting 1 

 

 

MINUTES 

CITY OF FALLON 

55 West Williams Ave 

Fallon, Nevada 

May 16, 2023 

 

The Honorable City Council met in a regular meeting on the above date in the Council 

Chambers, 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallon, Nevada. 

 
Present: 
 

Mayor Ken Tedford 

Councilwoman Kelly Frost 
Councilwoman Karla Kent 

Councilman Paul Harmon 
Chief of Staff Bob Erickson 
City Attorney Mike Mackedon 

Deputy City Attorney Sean Rowe 
Public Works Director Brian Byrd 
Deputy Public Works Ryan Swirczek 

Deputy City Clerk Elsie Lee 
Deputy City Clerk Michael O’Neill 
Chief Ron Wenger 

Captain John Riley 
Captain Daniel Babiarz 
Engineer Derek Zimney 

Director of Tourism Jane Moon 
Emergency Manager Steve Endacott 
 

     

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Ken Tedford at 9:00 a.m.     

  

Mayor Ken Tedford led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Mayor Ken Tedford inquired if the agenda had been posted in compliance with NRS 

requirements. 

Deputy City Clerk Elsie Lee advised that the agenda was posted in compliance with 
the NRS requirements. 

 

Public Comments 

 
Mayor Ken Tedford inquired if there were any public comments.  He noted that 

comments  are to be general in nature, not relative to any agenda items. No action may be taken 

on a matter raised under this item until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda 
as an item upon which action will be taken.   

No comments were noted.   

 

 

3

Item 4.



May 16, 2023 Fallon City Council Meeting 2 

 

 

Consideration and possible approval of Council Meeting Minutes for March 7, 2023, 

April 4, 2023, April 7, 2023, April 18, 2023, and May 2, 2023. 

 

Councilwoman Frost motioned to approve with no corrections or additions the Council 

Meeting Minutes for March 7, 2023, April 4, 2023, April 7, 2023, April 18, 2023, and May 2, 

2023; seconded by Councilwoman Kent and approved with a 3-0 vote by the Council.  

 

Approval of Warrants 

 

A) Accounts Payable 

B) Payroll 
C) Customer Deposit 

 

Councilman Harmon motioned to approve the accounts payable, payroll and customer 

deposit warrants; seconded by Councilwoman Kent and approved with a 3-0 vote by the 
Council.      

   

 Fallon Police Department Monthly Report for April 2023. 

 
Chief Ron Wenger presented the April monthly report.  The report will compare 2023 

crime, traffic stop, and traffic accidents statistics to April 2022.  He added that the incidents 
were elevated, with respect to the same timeframe last year.  Total calls-for-service this month 
were up by 173, with 793 total calls-for-service compared to 620 last year. 

 Crime Summary: 4 total Domestic battery; resulted in 1 – adult arrest, 1 – juvenile 

arrest, and 2 warrants requested.    

 Arrest Summary: 2 batteries, of which 1 was closed by juvenile arrest and the other is 

still under investigation.  Both batteries involved juveniles, one at Oats Park and one 
at the High School.   31 total arrests, 21 – adults, 10 – juvenile.  Fallon Police Officers 

forwarded 12 cases for warrants, and 11 cases for juvenile petitions to local 
prosecutors.  In addition, 3 citations were issued in lieu of arrest, 2 to juveniles, and 1 
to an adult.   

 Theft calls:  3 stolen vehicles in the City – 1 from a local motel that had a faulty 
ignition, 1 from Industrial Way, where the keys were left in the vehicle, and 1 from a 

private residence in which the car was left unattended and running.   All 3 vehicles 
were recovered, 1 on Pioneer Way in Churchill County, 1 in Lyon County, and the 3rd 
1 in Washoe County.  8 thefts, 2 of which were closed due to lack of evidence and 4 

are still under investigation, and 2 were closed with warrants requested.  Of the thefts, 
the following items were reported stolen: from 5 separate Walmart thefts boots, 
appliances, car accessories, gardening items, over-the-counter medicine, and toys.  
From Boot Barn – 5 pairs of jeans.  From a private residence – a firearm.  From another 

private residence – a catalytic converter from a truck. 

 Moving Citations/Traffic Warnings: 99 traffic stops – 9 citations and 90 warnings. 

 Public Property Accidents: 2 – private property traffic accidents, and 13 – public 
property accidents. 

 Animal Shelter Services: Total 118; Churchill County – 55; City – 63  

 Volunteers in Police Services: Contributed 119 hours to the agency through Helping 

Hands and other assignments.   

 Public Relations: Officer Itskin discussed bicycle safety with a group of Boy Scouts.  

4

Item 4.



May 16, 2023 Fallon City Council Meeting 3 

 

 

On April 21, officers assisted on Maine Street during a Fountain Dye.  April 22, 
Detective Goodrick and the Volunteers in Police Services participated in an RX-

Roundup.  April 27, Detective Goodrick and Officer Atchison attended a carnival at the 
Pennington Life Center.  April 28, Detective Goodrick held an Active Shooting 
Training at the Churchill County School District Transportation Department.  April 28, 
the department assisted with another Fountain Dye. 

 Department Citizen Surveys: 6 total surveys were returned; 6 were Very Satisfied. 
Mayor Tedford inquired if the Council had any questions or comments. 

Councilwoman Kent inquired if the Police Department offers Active Shooting Trainings 
to any business if a business makes that request.   

Chief Wenger stated that the Police Department would be happy to offer assistance to 

businesses that may ask for this type of training.  
Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any further comments or questions. 

     No further comments were noted.  

 

Public Comments 

 
Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any public comments. 

No comments were noted.  

 

Council and Staff Reports       
 

Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any Council or staff reports. 

Councilman Harmon stated that last Saturday, the Mayor’s Cup, was a fantastic day.  I 

want to give credit to you, Mayor, Nicole, Ryan, and your whole staff for putting on a fabulous 

golf tournament for that day.  I think that the community and the kids that will benefit from 

this event are greatly appreciated throughout the community.   

Mayor Tedford thanked Councilman Harmon.  It worked out well and those kids that 

may fall through the crack, really appreciate that.  That is our major fundraiser for the Mayor’s 

Youth Fund, and I appreciated everyone that helped, from the staff to the interns that helped.  I 

appreciate that very much.  I thank the golf course for the work they did that day, and certainly 

all the sponsors and golfers, it is very much appreciated.  Thank you.     

No further reports were noted. 

 

Executive Session       
 

Mayor Tedford tabled the executive session, as it was not needed at this time. 

 

Adjournment 

 

There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Tedford adjourned 

the meeting at 9:09 a.m.       

           
________________________________ 

          Mayor Ken Tedford  

 

Attest:___________________________________ 

 Sean C. Richardson, City Clerk-Treasurer 

5

Item 4.



 

CITY OF FALLON 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION  
 

DATE SUBMITTED: May 31, 2023 

AGENDA DATE: June 6, 2023 

TO: The Honorable City Council 

FROM: Elsie Lee, Deputy City Clerk 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Consideration of application by Kristen Adakai for a retail liquor license 

for MK Innovations LLC, dba The Scooby Shack to be located at 195 E. 

Center Street.  (For possible action) 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: 

 Resolution  Ordinance 

(X) Formal Action/Motion  Other – Discussion Only 

 

POSSIBLE COUNCIL ACTION: Motion to approve application and to issue a retail liquor license to 

Kristen Adakai for MK Innovations LLC, dba The Scooby Shack to be located at 195 E. Center Street. 

 

DISCUSSION: Kristen Adakai, an owner of MK Innovations LLC, dba The Scooby Shack has made 

application for a retail liquor license for MK Innovations LLC, dba The Scooby Shack at 195 E. Center 

Street.  A retail liquor license is a privileged license that allows the licensee to sell alcoholic beverages 

from a fixed and definite place of business for consumption off of the premises only. 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: Annual retail liquor license fee revenue.     

 

FUNDING SOURCE: N/A.        

 

PREPARED BY: Elsie Lee, Deputy City Clerk 

 

6

Item 6.



7

Item 6.



8

Item 6.



9

Item 6.



10

Item 6.



11

Item 6.



12

Item 6.



13

Item 6.



 

CITY OF FALLON 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION  
 

DATE SUBMITTED: May 30, 2023 

AGENDA DATE: June 6, 2023 

TO: The Honorable City Council 

FROM: Nevada Rural Housing 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Consideration and possible approval and adoption of Resolution 23-06: A 

resolution of the City Council of Fallon, Nevada providing for the transfer 

of the City’s 2023 Private Activity Bond Volume Cap to the Nevada Rural 

Housing authority; and other matters related thereto. (For possible action) 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: 

(X) Resolution  Ordinance 

 Formal Action/Motion  Other – Discussion Only 

 

POSSIBLE COUNCIL ACTION: Motion to approve and adopt Resolution 23-06: A resolution of the City 

Council of Fallon, Nevada providing for the transfer of the City’s 2023 Private Activity Bond Volume Cap to 

the Nevada Rural Housing authority; and other matters related thereto. 

 

DISCUSSION: Mishon Hurst, Nevada Rural Housing Authority ("NRHA") Deputy Executive Director, has 

submitted a request for the City to transfer its 2023 private activity bond volume cap to the NRHA. The 

NRHA promotes, provides and finances affordable housing opportunities for rural Nevadans. The City has 

annually approved the request from the NRHA. If approved, the attached resolution and transfer certificate 

will be executed and delivered to the Nevada Department of Business and Industry. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A.     

 

FUNDING SOURCE: N/A.        

 

PREPARED BY: Sean Richardson, City Clerk/Treasurer 

 

14

Item 7.



tmpFC65 

2241065 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF FALLON, NEVADA PROVIDING FOR THE 

TRANSFER OF THE CITY’S 2023 PRIVATE ACTIVITY BOND VOLUME CAP TO THE 

NEVADA RURAL HOUSING AUTHORITY; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 348A of the Nevada Revised Statutes 

(“NRS”) and Chapter 348A of the Nevada Administrative Code (“NAC”), there has been allocated 

to the City of Fallon, in Churchill County, Nevada (the “City,” “County” and “State,” 

respectively), the amount of $553,890.12 in tax-exempt private activity bond volume cap for year 

2023 (the “2023 Bond Cap”); and 

WHEREAS, the Nevada Rural Housing Authority (the “NRHA”), has requested that the City 

transfer its 2023 Bond Cap to the NRHA for the purpose of providing a means of financing the 

costs of single family residential housing that will provide decent, safe and sanitary dwellings at 

affordable prices for persons of low and moderate income (“Single Family Programs”); and 

WHEREAS, the City is a local government as defined by NAC 348A.070; and 

WHEREAS, Section 348A.180 of the NAC provides a procedure whereby the City may, by 

resolution, transfer to any other local government located within the same county, all or any portion 

of its 2023 Bond Cap; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 315.983(1)(a), the NRHA is an instrumentality, local 

government and political subdivision of the State; and 

WHEREAS, the NRHA is located within the County, pursuant to NRS 315.963, which 

defines the NRHA’s area of operation as “any area of the State which is not included within the 

corporate limits of a city or town having a population of 150,000 or more.” 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City does hereby find, resolve, determine and 

order as follows: 

 Section 1. Recitals.  The recitals set forth herein above are true and correct in all 

respects. 

 Section 2. Transfer of Private Activity Bond Volume Cap.  Pursuant to NAC 348A.180, 

the City hereby transfers its 2023 Bond Cap in the amount of $553,890.12 to the NRHA for its 

Single Family Programs. 

 Section 3. Use of 2023 Bond Cap.  The NRHA will use the 2023 Bond Cap for single 

family purposes in calendar year 2023 or carry forward any remaining amount according to the 

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, for such purposes. 

15

Item 7.



 2 

 Section 4. Representative of City.  Pursuant to NAC 348A.180(1), the Director of the 

State of Nevada Department of Business and Industry (the “Director”) may contact Sean 

Richardson, City Clerk Treasurer, City of Fallon, regarding this Resolution at (775) 423-5104 or 

by email at srichardson@fallonnevada.gov or in writing at 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallon, 

Nevada 89406. 

 Section 5. Additional Action.  The Mayor and City Clerk Treasurer are hereby 

authorized and directed to take all actions as necessary to effectuate the transfer of the 2023 Bond 

Cap, and carry out the duties of the City hereunder, including the execution of all certificates 

pertaining to the transfer as required by NAC Ch. 348A. 

 Section 6. Direction to the NRHA.  The NRHA shall notify the Director in writing as 

soon as practicable of the occurrence or nonoccurrence of any term or condition that would affect 

the disposition of the 2023 Bond Cap. 

 Section 7. Representative of the NRHA.  Pursuant to NAC 348A.180(3), the Director of 

Business and Industry may contact Diane Arvizo, Director of Homeownership Programs of the 

NRHA regarding this Resolution at (775) 886-7900 or by email at diane@nvrural.org or in writing 

at Nevada Rural Housing Authority, 3695 Desatoya Drive, Carson City, Nevada 89701. 

 Section 8. Obligation of the City.  This Resolution is not to be construed as a pledge of 

the faith and credit of or by the City, or of any agency, instrumentality, or subdivision of the City.  

Nothing in this Resolution obligates or authorizes the City to issue bonds for any project or to grant 

approvals for a project or constitutes a representation that such bonds will be issued. 

 Section 9. Enforceability.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this 

Resolution shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or 

unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the 

remaining provisions of this Resolution.  This Resolution shall go into effect immediately upon its 

passage. 

16

Item 7.



 

ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this ____ day of ____________, 2023. 

 

 

CITY OF FALLON, NEVADA 

By ____________________________________ 

Ken Tedford, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

By _____________________________________ 

         Sean Richardson, City Clerk Treasurer 

 

 

 

17

Item 7.



 

CERTIFICATE OF TRANSFER OF VOLUME CAP 

I, Sean Richardson, am the duly chosen and qualified City Clerk Treasurer of the City of 

Fallon, Nevada (the “City”) and in the performance of my duties as City Clerk Treasurer do hereby 

certify to the Office of Business Finance and Planning in accordance with Section 348A.260 of 

the Nevada Administrative Code (“NAC”), that the 2023 private activity bond volume cap 

allocated to the City in the amount of $553,890.12 has been transferred as follows: 

$553,890.12 has been transferred pursuant to NAC 348A.180 from the City, a local 

government, located in Churchill County to the Nevada Rural Housing Authority, 

a local government, located within Churchill County for the purpose of providing 

a means of financing the costs of single family residential housing that will provide 

decent, safe and sanitary dwellings at affordable prices for persons of low and 

moderate income. 

This certificate is being filed within five (5) days of the transfer being made in accordance 

with NAC 348.260. 

 

CITY OF FALLON, NEVADA 

By ____________________________________ 

Sean Richardson, City Clerk Treasurer 

 

 

cc: Diane Arvizo, Nevada Rural Housing Authority 

18

Item 7.



Nevada Rural Housing's Mission is to promote,

provide and finance affordable housing

opportunities for all rural Nevadans.

May 26, 2023

Ken Tedford

Mayor, City of Fallon

55 W. Williams Ave.

Fallon, NV 89406

Re: Request for Private Activity Bond Cap

Dear Mayor Tedford: 

Each year, your city transfers all or a portion of its unused Private Activity Bond Cap (PABC) to 
Nevada Rural Housing Authority (NRH), resulting in our continued success operating Home At Last™, 
the award-winning, single-family housing program created exclusively for rural homebuyers. 
Transferring unused PABC to NRH does not obligate the city in any way – it simply provides us with an 
additional financing tool to ensure we can continue offering affordable homeownership programs 
like the Mortgage Credit Certificate (MCC), offered exclusively through NRH. 

Please accept this letter as our request to schedule this as a consent item (or action item if needed) 
for the upcoming City Council meeting requested by NRH. A draft of the resolution and transfer 
certificate required by the State of Nevada is attached for your use in preparing this item for the 
agenda.

Within five (5) days of approval, please email the executed documents to Diane@NVRural.org and 
mail the originals to: 

Attn: Carrie Foley

State of Nevada, Department of Business & Industry

3300 W. Sahara Ave., Suite 425

Las Vegas, NV 89102

If you have any questions about the transfer or this request, please consult your counsel or NRH’s 
bond counsel, Ryan Bowen at (312) 845-3277.

With Sincere Gratitude,

William L. Brewer

Executive Director

Enclosures: 3 (Report, Resolution, Transfer Certificate)

Mission first.

Everything else

second.

19

Item 7.

mailto:Diane@NVRural.org


COMMUNITY  PROGRESS  REPORT

CITY  OF  FALLON ∙  2023

20

Item 7.



Homeownership

Homebuyer Tax Credits 

Rental Assistance

Community Development

Weatherization & Home Repair

Real Estate Operations

NRH operates under the oversight of a board of commissioners

appointed by the Nevada Association of Counties and the

Nevada League of Cities and Municipalities, and is defined as an

instrumentality, local government and political subdivision of the

State of Nevada, exercising public and essential governmental

functions. NRH’s area of operation is defined as communities with

population under 150,000. 

While the nuts and bolts of our programs help deliver the tangibles

(help with rent, apartment complexes, mortgages and homes),

the soul of our programs deliver the true deliverable: hope.

With community partners like you, NRH is proud to have delivered

hope to rural Nevadans for 50 years.

P R O G R A M  P O I N T S  O F  I N T E R E S T

$2 .3  B I L L ION MORTGAGES  PROVIDED

$38 .1  MILL ION EST .  TAX SAVINGS

1,158  FAMIL IES  ASS ISTED ANNUALLY

729  UNITS  BU I L T  OR PRESERVED

302  CL IENTS  ASS ISTED IN  5  RURAL  COUNT IES

736  DOORS MANAGED IN  9  COMMUNIT IES

21

Item 7.



HOMEOWNERSHIP  PROGRAMS

Our homeownership programs – from mortgage tax credits and down payment assistance, to low-rate

mortgage options and homebuyer education – provide unprecedented access to a wider range of

affordable credit options, resulting in doors being opened for more rural Nevadans to own a home.

Since 2006, the program has provided $2.3 billion in mortgages, assisted 10,532 homeowners,

provided $63.6 million in down payment assistance and has delivered $38.1 million in estimated tax

savings to homeowners, which is reinvested in their communities.

G E T  N E V A D A N S  H O M E  A T  L A S T

"W I THOUT  NEVADA RURAL ,  WE WOULD NOT

BE  IN  OUR HOME TODAY. "

- THE  CHR ISTY  FAMILY

A transfer of private activity bond cap to Nevada Rural Housing

benefits homebuyers by providing affordable single-family home

financing to those who desire to work, live and thrive in

rural Nevada. 

PROGRAM IMPACT  FOR CITY  OF  FALLON

$5.9 MILLION IN PRIVATE ACTIVITY BOND CAP TRANSFERS FROM THE CITY TO NRH SINCE 2006

$31.5 MILLION IN MORTGAGES PROVIDED TO 177 HOMEBUYERS SINCE 2006

$360,000 IN ESTIMATED FEDERAL TAX SAVINGS TO HOMEOWNERS IN THE CITY SINCE 2006

$911,265 IN DOWN PAYMENT ASSISTANCE TO HOMEBUYERS IN THE CITY SINCE 2006

22

Item 7.



SOLUT IONS-DRIVEN PROGRAMS

We know how good home feels, and we're here to help rural Nevadans

get there. Whether it's through building, repairing, managing, or helping

find and afford housing, our programs aim to deliver the solutions our

communities need and deserve.

Home i s  the  n ices t  word  there  i s .

SERVICE  BY  THE  NUMBERS

2/3 OF RENTAL ASSISTANCE RECIPIENTS ARE SENIORS AND PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES

68 CLIENTS HOLD SPECIAL VASH (VETERANS AFFAIRS SUPPORTIVE HOUSING) VOUCHERS

83% OF RENTAL-ASSISTED HOUSEHOLDS ARE BELOW 30% AREA MEDIAN INCOME

AVG. ANNUAL HOUSEHOLD INCOME OF RENTAL-ASSISTED HOUSEHOLD IS APPROX. $12,000

MOST WEATHERIZATION CLIENTS ARE AGING-IN-PLACE SENIORS WITH LOWER INCOMES

WEATHERIZATION PROGRAM CAN SAVE 5-30% ON ENERGY BILLS THROUGH AUDIT AND UPGRADES

128 PLANNED UNITS THROUGH 2025 WITH DEVELOPMENT EXPLORATION ONGOING

NRH  NOW ACCEPT ING LANDLORD PART ICIPAT ION APPL ICAT IONS

CONTACT :  LANDLORDS@NVRURAL .ORG OR (775)  283-0174

23

Item 7.



DATA-DRIVEN

DECIS IONMAKING

WHAT 'S  COMING IN  RURAL  NEVADA

Per the definition established by the Federal Government: "Families who pay more than 30 percent of their

income for housing (including the cost of their utilities) are considered to be 'overburdened' from a cost

perspective, and accordingly these households may have difficulty affording other necessities such as food,

clothing, transportation and medical care.”

We strive to provide clarity to the term “Affordable Housing” and to identify the growing need for affordable

housing inventory throughout our rural communities. This endeavor is designed to facilitate and support the

production of affordable housing stock in all rural areas throughout our state. And here's the thing: we know

we need more.

But how much? What kind? Where should it be? And what levels of affordability are needed to ensure a

community's housing ecosystem is positively impacted for generations to come?

Enter: The need for housing data.

24

Item 7.



In the fall of 2014, we began the task of identifying

our affordable housing needs by first identifying the

overburdened household populations throughout

the rural areas of our state, compiling three totally

independent housing studies. These studies

concentrated on 11 rural counties, the Carson City

area, and the high growth job market situated in

northern Nevada in connection with the Tahoe

Reno Industrial Center located in northern Storey

County. Each study assessed the population,

economic conditions, household size, income and

age factors, availability of community infrastructure

and public services, existing housing conditions,

home sales and area rental values, local projected

housing costs focused on the production of new

quality affordable housing products, and the

projected affordable housing demand concerns

for each housing market identified. This data was

intended to begin important dialogue between

counties, communities and partners.

HOUSING STUDY DATA AVAILABLE  AT

NEVADARURALHOUSINGSTUDIES .ORG

 

UPDATES  COMING 2023-2024

Population

Economic conditions

Household size

Income and age factors

Availability of infrastructure and public services

Existing housing conditions, home sales, and area rental values

Projected housing costs

Projected housing demand for every rural housing market in the state

We then published comprehensive housing studies in March 2018, covering Nevada’s 15 rural

counties and the rural portions of Clark and Washoe Counties. The studies highlighted challenges

and opportunities throughout Nevada, and promoted dialogue between private and public partners

who are tackling the state’s housing crisis. The studies assess factors that contribute to a community’s

housing needs, including:

Data is just a snapshot in time, of course, and we will be releasing updated studies in 2023 and 2024

through our work with the University of Nevada, Reno Extension's Nevada Economic Assessment

Project (NEAP).

25

Item 7.

https://www.unr.edu/nevada-today/news/2023/neap-housing-project


SEE  THE  MISS ION

IN ACT ION

VIS I T  US  AT  NVRURAL .ORG

TH IS  INST I TUT ION I S  AN EQUAL  OPPORTUNITY

PROVIDER  AND EMPLOYER

 

26

Item 7.



 

CITY OF FALLON 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION  
 

DATE SUBMITTED: May 30, 2023 

AGENDA DATE: June 6, 2023 

TO: The Honorable City Council 

FROM: Trent deBraga, Deputy City Attorney 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Consideration and possible action to approve the contract for the purchase 

of City owned property, commonly known as 1290 New River Parkway, 

Fallon, Nevada (Churchill County Assessor’s Parcel No.: 001-781-09) to 

Ivy Land LLC in the amount of sixty-five thousand dollars ($65,000) and 

for other matters properly related thereto. (For possible action) 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: 

 Resolution  Ordinance 

(X) Formal Action/Motion  Other – Discussion Only 

 

POSSIBLE COUNCIL ACTION: Motion to approve the contract for the purchase of City owned 

property, commonly known as 1290 New River Parkway, Fallon, Nevada (Churchill County Assessor’s 

Parcel No.: 001-781-09) to Ivy Land LLC in the amount of sixty-five thousand dollars ($65,000) and for 

other matters properly related thereto. 

DISCUSSION: On January 18, 2022, after an appraisal was performed by 

JOHNSON|PERKINS|GRIFFIN, the City Council determined that the subject property, identified as 

Parcel F within the business park, should be listed at $65,000. The subject property consists of 

approximately one acre. 

The City has received an offer from Ivy Land LLC in the amount of $65,000 to purchase the City’s real 

property located within the business park and commonly known as 1290 New River Parkway, Fallon, 

Nevada. The contract and its proposed terms are attached to this agenda item.  

The City has received information that the buyer intends to develop and use the property for multiple 

uses including preschool, daycare, gymnastics and jujitsu.  

If approved, the Mayor will execute the contract on behalf of the City and the transaction will proceed to 

escrow. 

PREPARED BY: Trent deBraga, Deputy City Attorney 

27

Item 8.



28

Item 8.



29

Item 8.



30

Item 8.



31

Item 8.



32

Item 8.



33

Item 8.



34

Item 8.



35

Item 8.



36

Item 8.



37

Item 8.



38

Item 8.



39

Item 8.



40

Item 8.



41

Item 8.



 

42

Item 8.



 

CITY OF FALLON 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION  
 

DATE SUBMITTED: May 30, 2023 

AGENDA DATE: June 6, 2023 

TO: The Honorable City Council 

FROM: Brian Byrd, Public Works Director 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Consideration and possible action to approve an agreement with Precision 

Ice Rinks of Concord, NC, for a three-month rental of a 40’ x 100’ ice-

skating rink, in the amount of One Hundred Sixty-One Thousand Three 

Hundred Fifty Dollars ($161,350.00). (For possible action) 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: 

 Resolution  Ordinance 

(X) Formal Action/Motion  Other – Discussion Only 

 

POSSIBLE COUNCIL ACTION: Motion to approve an agreement with Precision Ice Rinks of Concord, 

NC, for a three-month rental of a 40’ x 100’ ice-skating rink, in the amount of One Hundred Sixty-One 

Thousand Three Hundred Fifty Dollars ($161,350.00). (For possible action) 

 

DISCUSSION: Upon approval, the agreement would allow Precision Ice Rinks to install a 40’ x 

100’portable ice-skating rink at the location of the City of Fallon’s choosing.  As described in the 

attached agreement, Precision Ice Rinks would be required to provide an operational rink from 

November 18th through January 7th.  The skating surface would be authentic ice, with all components of 

the system being provided by Precision Ice.  The ice-skating rink elements are designed in such a way 

that a rink can be installed in any conceivable location and in any weather conditions. 

 

Precision Ice will also supply a ride-on “Zamboni”, 400 pairs of rental skates, field technicians for 

setup/teardown and 24 hour on-call tech support. Precision Ice Rinks has been in business since 2011 

and provides portable ice-rinks to customers all throughout the country.   

 

The operation of this seasonal rink would allow for a unique recreational experience for our community 

while providing a destination for tourism during the holiday season.   

BACKGROUND: This advertisement was released for public bid on April 20, 2023 and was advertised 

in accordance with NRS 332.  Four (4) bids were received and opened on May 4, 2023 as further 

described in the attached documents.   

FISCAL IMPACT: $161,350.00 

43

Item 9.



FUNDING SOURCES: Local Funds 

PREPARED BY: Brian Byrd, Director of Public Works 

DATE: May 31, 2023 

TO BE PRESENTED TO THE COUNCIL BY: Ryan Swirczek,  Deputy Public Works Director 

 

44

Item 9.



Ken Tedford 

MAYOR 

  

James D. Richardson 

Councilman 

 

Kelly Frost 

Councilwoman 

 

Karla Kent 

Councilwoman 

 

 

 

City of Fallon • 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallon, Nevada 89406 • Phone (775) 423-3040 • fallonnevada.gov 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO:  Mayor Tedford, Bob Erickson, Sean Richardson, Trent deBraga, Sean Rowe, 
and Brian Byrd 

  
FROM: Ryan Swirczek 
 
DATE: May 12, 2023 
  
RE:    Ice-Skating Rink Rental  
 

 
On Thursday, May 4, 2023, we opened bids for an ice-skating rink rental.  We had 4 bids 

altogether and after reviewing them I found no issues.   I would recommend going with Precision 

Ice Rinks from Concord, NC and their rental bid is $161,350.00.  I have provided the list of 

bidders below and have attached each bid form. 

 

1. Precision Ice Rinks  $161,350.00 

2. Special Ice   $162,817.00 

3. Magic Ice   $174,950.00 

4. Ice America   $196,739.00 

 

Thank you 

 
 

45

Item 9.



46

Item 9.



47

Item 9.



48

Item 9.



49

Item 9.



50

Item 9.



51

Item 9.



52

Item 9.



53

Item 9.



54

Item 9.


	Top
	Item 4.	Consideration and possible approval of Council Meeting Minutes (For possible approval)
	5-16-23 Council (waiting for approval)

	Item 6.	MK Innovations
	ITEM-Staff-569ff8b6409d40e3baefce307f198361 5-16 scooby shack
	MK Innovations Liquor License_Redacted

	Item 7.	NRHA
	ITEM-Staff- Rural Housing 6-6-23
	PABC 2023 Resolution Fallon
	Fallon Progress Report 2023

	Item 8.	ivy land purchase
	ITEM-Staff-569ff8b6409d40e3baefce307f198361 ivyland
	Purchase Contract Docs
	Overview of Business Park showing Parcel F

	Item 9.	ice rink
	ITEM-Staff- ice rink 6-6-23
	Ice skating rink rental recommendation

	Bottom

